
Question:
Reference Section L, Paragraph 5.2


(a)  
Is the cover letter to be included in all paper and electronic proposals


submitted?

(b) 
Will contents of the cover letter be evaluated as part of the proposal?

(c)  
Will the locations of work effort sites listed in the Cover Letter meet the criteria for the Offeror presence in each Zone?

(d)  
Can the Offeror list recent prime contracts/subcontracts by     Zones in the Cover Letter as part of fulfilling the General Evaluation Criteria, Section M, Paragraph 3.1?

Answer:
(a)  
No, the cover letter should only be delivered to NSWC Dahlgren as a 




hardcopy.


(b)
No


(c) 
See Amendment 0004.


(d)
The 30 page narrative required by 5.4.1.1 is where you should discuss your 




ability to meet the evaluation criteria.

Question:
Several relevant contracts that we wish to cite are with customers who do not want to show full contract numbers because of security concerns. Customer contacts will be provided and customers will verify performance. Can we use a partially hidden contract number – for example XXXXXX-01-D-6666 – on Table A and relevant narratives for reference to these contracts? 

Answer:
Yes.

Question:
Will there be someone present at Dahlgren and Panama City on Monday January 19th to receive an early submission of the proposal and issue an official receipt since that day is a Government holiday?

Answer:
No, January 19th is a Federal Holiday.

Question:
Reference Attachment J.3 -  Attachment J.3 has no place to identify Prime Contractor’s name.  It is suggested that the offeror be required to identify Name of Prime and Zone Number/Name for each separate Table A submitted.

Answer:
Amplifying information may be provided in the thirty page narrative.

Question:
Reference Attachment J.5, Table B -  Instructions for Attachment J.5, Table B, seem designed for Primes with no mention of subcontractors.  However, it seems clear that the Government’s intent is to include subcontractors as well.  Please clarify instructions for filling out Table B for subcontractors.

Answer:
The Prime contractor is required to complete the first line of the Table for the entire Team.  A revised J.5 has been provided with a sample fill in.

Question:
Reference Attachment J.3, Table A -  Please confirm that Attachment J.3 Table A data is to be submitted electronically only, as per Section L, Paragraph 4.2.  Section L, Paragraph 2.1 requires one paper technical proposal and cost proposal and a CD-ROM of Attachment J.5 (Section L, paragraph 2.6) be sent to Dahlgren.  Does Dahlgren also require an electronic copy of Attachment J.3?  Is there a requirement to deliver an electronic copy of J.5 to Panama City? 

Answer:
Dahlgren does not require an electronic copy of J.3.  Only Dahlgren shall receive an electronic copy of J.5.

Question:
Reference:  Amendment 0001, page 122 paragraph 3.7.  -  The RFP is in PDF format and fill-ins cannot be accomplished as specified in 3.7.  Can the RFP be sent in a word document?

Answer:
No the RFP will not be available in a word document.

Question: 
Reference:  Amendment 0001, page 122 paragraph 4.2 -  Does Table A have to be in 12-Point (Times New Roman font) or can it be smaller.  Also, can Table A be on larger than 8.5 x 11 paper?

Answer:
There are no minimum font sizes defined for Table A, but Offerors are reminded that if the information is not legible it will not be evaluated.  Table A must be no larger then 8.5 x 11 paper.

Question:
Reference:  Page 125, 5.5.1 (b) Ceiling Unit Price for Item 1. -  If one of the subcontractors has the highest rate, detail of the development of that rate is considered proprietary and will not be given to the prime.  Can the prime state which subcontractor has the rate and the subcontractor can then provide the detail directly to the Government?

Answer:
Yes.  It should be clearly marked to which Primes proposal it is part of.

Question:
Page 124, 5.4.1 Evaluation Factor 1: Technical Capability Depth and Breadth (Table A plus 30 pages):  Can a contract awarded by an agency in one zone and performed in that same zone be used in Table A for more than that zone?  This question assumes that the contractor qualifies by having other prime contracts or offices in all zones proposed.

Answer:
Yes.

Question:
Answers to Questions from Industry (SEAPORT Attachment J4): In several instances in the answers to Questions from Industry, it is stated that a minimum of five awards per zone will be made to small businesses.  However, on the top of page 129 of this attachment, the answer to a related question says that "a minimum of five awards per zone will be made to small disadvantaged businesses".  Which is correct?

Answer:
It should have read Small Businesses.

Question:
Page 124, 5.4.1 Evaluation Factor 1: Technical Capability Depth and Breadth (Table A plus 30 pages):  Can the contracts listed on page 1 of Table A include government contracting agencies other than NAVSEA, its Program Executive Offices (PEO’s), and Warfare Center sites?  For example, can an offeror list a prime contract with ONR in Table A? This question assumes that the contractor qualifies by having other prime contracts with NAVSEA, its Program Executive Offices (PEO’s), and Warfare Center sites or offices in all zones proposed.

Answer:
Yes, you may use other than NAVSEA contracts to demonstrate your relevant Depth and Breadth of experience/expertise.

Question:
Page 124, 5.4.1 Evaluation Factor 1: Technical Capability Depth and Breadth (Table A plus 30 pages):  If a contract was issued by a Warfare Center located in one zone, but the work involved collaboration or technical oversight provided by Warfare Centers in multiple zones, can this contract be listed on Table A in each of these zones? This question assumes that the contractor qualifies by having other prime contracts or offices in all zones proposed. 

Answer:
Yes.

Question:
Page 130, 4.0 Factor Rating Scale, Factor 1: Technical Capability - Depth and Breadth:  This section states that an "outstanding" rating for this factor will be given to a small business led team that demonstrates relevant experience in three or more of the functional areas of the SOW in the zone's proposed on.  However, there are many answers in the "questions from industry" that imply that, to attain higher scores, offerors should demonstrate "depth and breadth" in all 21 functional areas of the SOW for each zone proposed.  This seems inconsistent and would potentially discriminate against small business led teams that are focused on only a few (3 -6) of the SOW's functional areas per zone.

(a) Please reconfirm that a small business led team can be rated "outstanding" in "Factor 1: Technical capability - Depth and Breadth" if it only responds to three functional areas per zone proposed on.

(b) Will a prime small business offeror whose subcontractors are all small businesses be evaluated differently than a prime small business offeror that proposes one or more large businesses as subcontractors?

Answer:
(a) Section M 4.0 Factor Rating Scale states in part “Outstanding:  Small Business or relevant experience in 3 or more Functional Areas of the SOW in the Zone(s) proposed on.”  The criteria was developed to encourage Small Business primes, not to discriminate against them.


(b) No, they will not be evaluated differently.

Question:
Page 131,  Factor 2 Management Approach:  To obtain at least a satisfactory rating, the offeror will have to have "Demonstrated a capability to mold, manage and maintain teams performing in limited tasking areas".  This may be difficult for a relatively new small business even though the management may have extensive experience managing such teams at former employers.  Can small business offerors utilize their management's specific past experience molding, managing and maintaining teams gained while employed by recent employers?

Answer:
In response to the specific question, Yes.

Question:
Are subcontractors required to complete and submit Section K Representations and Certifications with a Prime’s proposal?

Answer:
Only the Prime contractor is required to submit the Representation and Certification in Section K.

Question:
Section L, Paragraphs 2.1 and 2.3, at RFP Page 120.  Given that as of January 7th, the Government has not answered most of the RFP questions submitted, we request that the due date for the proposal be extended to at least Wednesday, January 28, 2003 to provide offerors with adequate time to review the answers and modify their proposals accordingly.

Answer:
Amendment 0003 extends the due date for proposals to 22 January 2004.  No further extensions are contemplated.

Question:
Section J, Attachment J.5, at RFP Page 96; Section L, Paragraphs 2.6, at RFP Page 121.

(a)  Should Attachment J.5 reflect data for the Prime contractor only or all of the proposed team members?

(b) Is it permissible to alter the column widths in Attachment J.5 to accommodate the data requested, e.g., name, address, zip code, TIN, etc.?

Answer:
(a) The Prime contractor is required to complete the first line for the entire Team.   A sample J.5 is provided with Amendment 0003.


(b) No.

Question:
Section L, Paragraph 52.215-1(c)(2), at RFP Pages 114-115 and Section L, Paragraph 5.2, at RFP Pages 123-124. - Section L, Paragraph 52.215-1(c)(2) identifies requirements for the “first page of the proposal” that are also included in the requirements for the five-page (maximum) Cover Letter included in Section L, Paragraph 5.2.  Is it correct to assume that submission of a compliant Cover Letter per Section L, Paragraph 5.2 satisfies the requirements of Paragraph 52.215-1(c)(2) without the need for a separate “first page of the proposal”?

Answer:
Amendment 0003 clarifies the Cover Letter requirements.

Question:
Section L, Paragraphs 2.1 and 2.3, at RFP Page 120. - Given that Monday, January 19, 2004 is a Federal Holiday, and that electronic transmission of the proposal is not authorized, we request that the due date for the proposal be extended to at least Thursday, January 22, 2003 to provide offerors two business days immediately preceding the due date to effect delivery by the United States Postal Service or a commercial carrier.

Answer:
Amendment 0003 extends the due date for submission of the proposal to 22 January 2004.

Question:
Section L, Paragraphs 2.1, 2.3 and 2.6, at RFP Pages 120 and 121.

(a)  Is Attachment J.5, the submission of which is addressed in Section L, Paragraph 2.6, considered part of the Technical Volume?

(b)  Please confirm that the Government requires only Attachment J.5 to be submitted electronically to the location specified in paragraph 2.1 and that all other information required to be submitted to the location specified in paragraph 2.1 is to be submitted in paper format.

(c)   Please confirm that the Government only requires the submission of Volume 1 electronically on the CD-ROM to the location specified in Paragraph 2.3, i.e., does not require any part of the cost volume to be submitted electronically and does not require Attachment J.5 to be submitted electronically unless it is confirmed that Attachment J.5 is considered part of Volume 1.
Answer:
(a) No it is separate from the Technical Volume

(b) J.5 should be submitted electronically to NSWC Dahlgren (see complete address 2.2.1)

(c) Yes, the Government only requires the submission of Volume I electronically to NSWC Panama City.

Question:
Page 124, Section 5.3.1 indicates the offeror shall insert the proposed amount or contractor specific information where an * appears in Section B therefore are the amounts given for Fixed Price Orders and Other Direct Costs for Base Period, Award Term I and Award Term 2 on pages 2 and 3, not to be changed and provided as is in the proposal?

Answer:
You are correct.

Question:
Page 78, Section H.10, Guaranteed Savings Clause. Could you please provide more detail on how this works?

Answer:
One of the objectives of SEAPORT ENHANCED is to secure professional high quality services at reduced costs.  H.10 Guaranteed Savings request Offerors to identify reductions in costs on a yearly basis for the services performed.  It further asks Offerors to identify cost savings based on volume of work received.  Further it requires Offerors to identify the maximum pass through rate charged during the life of the contract.  These identified savings will be continually enforced during the Task Order process.

Question:
Pages 2 and 3, Section B. To determine the unit price for items 0004 and 0007, does the contractor escalate the rate, as determined in question 3 above, according to approved DCAA accounting practices and should this also be included on the one page requirement on page 128?

Answer:
You may escalate the rate.  The escalation should be identified on the one page discussion of the Ceiling Unit Price for Item 0001 required by Section L.4.3.

Question:
Pages 2 through 5, Section B provides the maximum amount for fixed price orders for each Option Period, can the cost type orders maximum amount exceed the fixed price orders maximum amounts or does the fixed price orders maximum amount represent a ceiling amount that can be proposed?

Answer:
The cost type orders maximum can exceed the fixed price orders maximum amount.

Question:
Page 122, Section 3.9, indicates Small and Small Disadvantaged Businesses are

encouraged to propose as prime contractors however the solicitation does not include clause 52.219-14, Limitation on Subcontracting. Is there a required limitation on the percent of the cost of contract performance incurred that Small and Small Disadvantaged Businesses are allowed to allocate to their subcontractors. If there is not a required limitation, will Small and Small Disadvantaged Businesses be penalized during evaluation or otherwise for not meeting a certain percentage?

Answer:
During the Task Order process to be eligible for Small Business set aside, the Small Business must perform 51% of the work.  FAR Clause 52-219-14 will be included in the contract for set asides at the Task Order level.

Question:
Page 126, Section 5.5.1(b), Ceiling Unit Price for Item 0001 indicates the offeror shall provide a breakdown of the derivation of the ceiling unit price, including the method for developing the direct labor rate (what labor category for what company), the indirect burdens applied, the escalation used, and the fee rate. The offeror’s price breakdown shall not exceed one page. The Government shall not consider any information presented beyond the last word of the 1st page. Page 124, Section 5.3.1.1 indicates the offeror must 1 of 3 propose a ceiling unit price for Item 0001. This rate must be the actual hourly rate from the most recent fully completed accounting year for the highest (direct cost) labor category within the team proposed. Note that the rate may be from the prime or any other team member. All applicable direct and indirect costs, escalation and fee associated with the labor rate must be applied. Could you please clarify how the cost should be developed? The solicitation does not include any labor category descriptions. Are the contractors suppose to use their own company labor categories that would be required to perform the requirements in the SOW and on one page list the individuals, for each company (including subcontractors), by labor category, hourly wage rate, apply burdens in accordance with DCAA approved accounting practices (G&A only for subcontractors), and fee and choose the highest fully burdened hourly labor rate or should the labor category be a composite of all rates to fill-in unit price in Section B page 2 and multiple by the max quantity to find max amount?

Please explain in more detail how you expect to see the development of rate(s). Should we show the development of each persons fully burdened rate proposed to work in each functional area?

Answer:
You should provide one fully burdened rate.  There is no requirement to provide each persons fully burden rate.

Question:
Page 83, Section I, Contract Clauses, include Service Contract Act of 1965, As Amended clause 52.222-41. Will you be providing a list of the labor categories that will be applicable to the Service Contract Act requirements to determine which rates to use in computing the unit price?

Answer:
This will be done at the Task Order level when/if Service Contract Act employees are to be used.

Question:
Page 71, Section H-5, Task Order Process. Do awardees have to bid on all task orders issued under the contract and/or are awardees penalized for not bidding?

Answer:
No, Awardees should only bid on tasks that they have the experience/expertise to perform.  They will not be penalized for not bidding.

Question:
Amendment 0001, Page 122 Section 4.3 indicates cover letter page limit of 5 pages however Page 124 Section5.2 (10) of the Solicitation specifies to include, in addition to the other cover letter information, a copy of the prime contractors CCR registration information from the CCR website. The CCR registration information from the website is 5 pages long therefore would the CCR information be included as part of the cover letter page limit of 5 pages?

Answer:
The CCR registration information is not included in the 5 page limit.

Question:
Reference: Amendment 0003, replacement page 70, item H.1.  The Offeror requests that the statement in the revised H.1 that reads “For the purpose of the qualification requirement, contract means meaningful work performed at one or more of the Warfare Center sites” be revised.  We request the removal of the apparent requirement that work be performed for, and physically “at,” a Warfare Center. 

Numerous contracts that would appear to qualify per previous guidance repeatedly given by the Government will not qualify under this new definition.  For example, a contract let by NSWC Crane, but performed elsewhere (and not necessarily even “at” a government site), should qualify in Zone 5, but now does not meet the requirement as stated in H.1 as amended.  Similarly, based on all previous guidance given, we do not believe that it was the Government’s intent to require that the contract be a Warfare Center-issued contract.  However, as written, GSA contracts are the only exception from this requirement.  Even contracts issued by NAVSEA Headquarters, no longer appear to be qualifying contracts under this new definition. 

Answer:
The criteria for presence requires work performed for a Warfare Center site.  NAVSEA Headquarters although not a Warfare site would qualify. 

Question:
Reference: Amendment 3, Attachment 2, page 33, second question/answer. Please clarify the statement that “The Prime contractor is required to complete the first line [of Attachment J.5] for the entire Team.”  How is the “entire Team” to be encompassed, as all fields appear to be appropriate solely to a single contractor? For example, if the prime is a large business, with small business subcontractors, should the prime “X” the small business column? 

Answer:
It should be only the Prime.

Question:
Reference: Amendment 3, Attachment 2, page 38, fourth question/answer.  The Government has confirmed that in conflicts between the Questions/Answers and the RFP, the RFP governs.  Accordingly, the Offeror respectfully requests that the following changes that were made in the questions and answers (and we believe to be the Government’s intent) be formalized in an Amendment 0004:

· “‘A copy of the prime contractors CCR registration information from the CCR website’ is not included in the 5 page limitation”

· “The SF 294’s are excluded from the 10 page limitation.”

Answer:
The Government confirms the above statements.

Question:
Reference: L.5.2  (Cover Letter).  Please clarify the requirement for “a copy” of the CCR registration information.  A direct copy of this information, if unaltered, contains the contractor’s MPIN.  Contractors are not supposed to provide their MPIN to any outside parties, including Government officials, as this acts as the company’s password to several protected and sensitive database systems.   May Offerors remove this information?  Is all other CCR information desired?

Answer:
Offerors may remove the MPIN.  All other CCR registration information is desired.

Question:
Reference:  Amendment 0001, Page 2, Item 6 and Section L, Paragraph 4.2 -
What is the minimum font size to be used in flow charts and tables for the technical capability section?
Answer:
There is no minimum font size to be used in flow charts and tables.  Offerors are cautioned that illegible charts or tables will not be evaluated.

Question:
Reference: Section I - As some of the work may be performed at Government facilities, please add FAR 52.245-2, Government Property (Fixed-Price Contracts) Alternate I.

Answer:
FAR 52.245-2 will be added.

Question:
Question from Industry/Answers: The Government's response to the 11th question listed concerning the identity and location of offices state that Office locations of all Team members should be identified in the 30 page narrative.  Then, in response to the 19th question listed, the Government answer states that All office locations of all Team members should be listed in the 5-page cover letter.
 

QUESTION: Since the address data is no technical in nature and may have a major impact to the 30-page narrative for a large Team, will the Government allow identification of Team member addresses in the cover letter alone to be sufficient, and eliminate the location address requirement in the 30-page narrative?

Answer:
See Amendment 0004.

Question:
Amendment 0003, Attachment 2 page 22 states that "Office locations of all Team members should be identified in the 30 page narrative."  Please confirm that the list of office locations is only required in the cover letter as stated in the RFP and not in the 30 page narrative.  Including all office locations in the 30 pages would appear to be a duplication use critical space.

Answer:
See Amendment 0004.

Question:
Page 116 Paragraph (7) (d) Offer expiration date: This instruction states that proposals "will be valid for the number of days specified on the solicitation cover sheet" which is 180 days. Item 8 in the Cover Letter requirements (Page 123, Paragraph 5.2) states  "proposal validity through May 20, 2004" which calculates to 120 days.  Please clarify inconsistency in offer validity.

Answer:
The offer should be valid through 20 May 2004.

Question:
Page 125, Paragraph 5.4.2 (a)(2)(b), Subcontracting(Large Business only): This paragraph requires " three final SF 294s for the three relevant contracts...".    Companies such as ours qualify as both large and  small business under  contracts depending on the assigned NAICS code. Of the relevant contracts, some may have an SF 294, some may not.  Should the contractor submit 3 SF 294s on any other contract if not cited specifically for the relevant contracts or merely state that under the specific relevant contract, the offerer qualified as a small business and no 294 was required? 

Answer:
The offer should provide three relevant and recent SF 294’s that demonstrate your ability to meet the solicitations Small Business goals.

Question:
Page 122, Paragraph 4.3 Page numbers and Page 123, Paragraph 5.2 Cover Letter: The page limitation for the Cover Letter is "1 Page".  However, given the font and margin requirements,  the data required in the cover letter addressed on page 123 will not fit on one page. Would the government consider increasing the page limitation for the cover letter?

Answer:
The cover letter page limit has been changed to 5 pages in Amendment 0001 dated 16 December.

Question:
Question 2. Page 123, Paragraph 5.2 Cover Letter: Requirement 10 for the Cover Letter asks for "A copy of the prime contractors CCR registration information from the CCR website".  Further clarification is requested for this requirement.  The CCR website opens the company profile which, if printed is 12 pages long.  There is no registration notification on the website to print and provide a copy.   Further, to include a copy of any data from the CCR would add an extra page to the Cover Letter violating the page limitation cited above.  Request clarification on the requirement for the CCR registration data for the Cover Letter.

Answer: 
The cover letter page limit has been changed to 5 pages in Amendment 0001 dated 16 December.  The CCR information is not included in the 5 page limitation.  The CCR website does provide information that is printable that will allow the Government to determine if the Offeror is registered.

Question:
Clarification on 4.2 on page 122 in regards to Table A -
 

(a) Can Arial 8pt be used for Table A ??? 
 

(b) Can Table A have a print size of 8.5 x 14 ?
 

(c) Can Table A have a print size of 11 x 17 ?

Answer:
(a)  Yes, as long as it’s legible 



(b)  No



(c)  No

Question:
Question from Industry/Answer, page 133, the fifth question: Does the small business percentage outsource requirements apply at the task order level? / The goals will be set at the contract level, and enforced at the Task Order level.
 

QUESTION: The above answer appears to be in conflict with Solicitation Section L, 5.4.2(b) "Subcontracting" which states for the 20% Small Business goal and the subsets of that goal that the specific minimum requirement percentages that must be met are a given % "of the total dollars obligated under the contract (not per task order)".
Answer:
The Acquisition’s Small Business goals and requirements are established at the MAC level.  Since no work is performed until Task Orders are issued, the accomplishment of these goals and requirements will take place at the Task Order level.  The “Not per Task Order” refers to an acknowledgement that not every Task Order awarded will meet the MAC Small Business goals and requirements.  The goals will be met through the overall performance of Task Orders during the life of the MAC.

Question:
Reference:  Solicitation page 123, Paragraph 5.2, Cover Letter -  Paragraph 5.2 defines the requirements for the Cover Letter.  Number 10. requests a copy of the prime contractors CCR registration information from the CCR website.  This information consists of 4 pages.  Is it intended that the registration information is included in the 5 page limit or can it be included as an attachment?  

Answer:
No, the CCR registration information is not part of the 5 page cover letter limitation.

Question:
Pg 123, Section L, 4.3.  The Government is requesting “one entire copy (signed by the offeror) of the RFP in their proposal”.  We assume that this copy of the completed and signed RFP is to be separate and unbound from all other Volumes.  Is this assumption correct?  If not please clarify where these documents should be within the requested Volumes.

Answer:
Your assumption is correct.

Question:
As a large business, how will we know which task orders will be set aside as a cascading set aside?  How frequently will these provisions be used?  

Answer:  
The Contracting Officer will include in the task order solicitation provisions which notify the Offeror if set aside or cascading provisions will be used or if it will be competed as unrestricted.  It will be obvious for potential Offerors which Task Orders will be set aside.  It is anticipated that Cascading Set Aside provisions will be used only in those instances where the Contracting Officer is unable to determine before hand that a substantial Small Business presence can satisfy a requirement.

Question:
The deliverable for the Seaport proposal is due Tuesday, Jan 20th.  Monday, Jan 19th is a Federal Holiday.   I'm looking to FedEx our proposal for drop-off on Monday - will anyone be there to sign for the package???

Answer:
The proposal submission date has been extended to 22 January 2004.  It is not anticipated that anyone will be available on 19 January 2004 to receive proposals.

Question:
Is the delivery of the 10 copies of the technical proposal to Panama City

treated as a proposal submittal in accordance with the late bid provisions?

Example, If an offeror submits to Dahlgren its required proposal

documentation on time, but is 2 hours late with its delivery to Panama City,

what is the Contracting Officer's position?

Answer: 
Delivery of 10 copies of the technical proposal to Panama City is treated as a proposal submittal in accordance with the late bid provision.  The late technical proposal submittal to the NSWC Panama City site would be treated as a late proposal.

Question:
On Page 123 of the N00178-04-R-4000 solicitation, paragraph 5.2 Cover Letter, #10, it states that the cover letter should include "A copy of the prime contractors CCR registration information from the CCR website."  Company information on the CCR website includes General Information, Corporate Information, Goods and Services, and Point of Contact information.  Can you please clarify if the Government is looking for all of this information, or just a portion of the data available?

Answer:
The Government is looking for information that confirms the Offeror is registered in the CCR.

Question:
May I apply pass through rates to other divisions of my company?

Answer:
No.  Since there is only one contract per company, pass through rates applied to other divisions of a prime contract holder will not be applicable.

Question:
To qualify for a zone, can a company office location include the Government Site supported by full time on-site staff from that company?  With our mission contracts, we have several locations where our office (management and staff) is located on the Government Site as required by contract.

Answer:
Your specific scenario does not qualify as a local office.

Question:
Where in the submission does an offeror show the fee and pass through percentages that are to be evaluated?

Answer:
In the Cost Proposal.

Question:
When providing the Ceiling Unit Price we are assuming the rate to be the highest annual rate within the five years of the base or award term.  Please confirm.

Answer:
Yes.

Question:
Section L, 4.2, at RFP Page 122, Table A – Table A is provided in Microsoft Excel.  Could you please confirm the font and type size required in Table A.

Answer:
There are no font and type size requirements for Table A.  Please ensure the Table is legible.

Question:
Would a foreign-owned Small Business doing work with NATO be allowed to be part of our team as long as they met the security clearance requirements for any given task order?

Answer:
Yes.

Question:
Is it possible to deliver our proposal package, divided and individually wrapped as specified in RFP paragraphs 2.1 and 2.3 of the Instructions For Submission of Offers section (page 12), to one location versus having to make two deliveries to two different locations?

Answer:
No, Offerors are required to follow the proposal submission requirements found in paragraphs 2.1 and 2.3.

Question:
Section J, Attachment J.5, at RFP Page 96; Section L, Paragraphs 2.6, at RFP Page 121; Section L, Paragraphs 4.2, at RFP Page 122.  Attachment J.5 is provided in Excel and is required to be submitted electronically in Section L, Paragraph 2.6.  Section L, Paragraph 4.2 indicates that all electronic submissions other than Table A must be in Microsoft Word with a “.doc” extension.  Please confirm whether it is acceptable to submit Attachment J.5 in Excel with a “.xls” extension.

Answer:
Yes.

Question:
Section B, Item Nos. 0004 and 0008, at RFP Pages 2 & 3; Section L, Paragraphs 5.3.1 and 5.3.1.1, at RFP Page 124; Section L, Paragraph 5.5.1, at RFP Page 126.  Section B has asterisks for Item Nos. 0004 and 0008 in addition to Item No. 0001.  Section L, Paragraphs 5.3.1, 5.3.1.1, and 5.5.1 only refer to Item No. 0001.  

(a)  Please confirm that offerors are required to propose a ceiling unit price for   Items 0004 and 0008.  

(b)  Please confirm whether the one-page ceiling unit price breakdown required by Section L, Paragraph 5.5.1 should include the breakdown for the Item Nos. 0004 and 0008 ceiling unit prices in addition to Item No. 0001.

Answer:
(a)  The RFP has been amended to require Ceiling Unit Prices for Items 0001, 0004 and 0007.

(b)  The one page Ceiling Unit Price breakdown should indicate Ceiling Prices for Items 0001, 0004 and 0007.

Question:
Attachment J-5.  The solicitation indicates on page 96 that Attachment J-5 should be completed, and the remarks at the beginning of the Attachment itself indicate that it should be submitted on a compact disk to the location identified in Section 2.1.  We assume this refers to paragraph 2.1 of Section L.  However, nowhere in Section L or on page 96 does the solicitation indicate where the Government expects the completed Attachment to be placed in the proposal package.  We request that the Government clarify this point.  

Additionally, the table elements are explained on the first page of the Attachment, but no mention is made of the following data fields which appear in the table:
·       Admin Office ID

·       Payment Office ID
·       Zones 1-7 
·       Small Business

It appears that these may be for the internal use of the Government.  However, if the Government expects contractors to provide information in these fields please so state.

Answer:
The CD-ROM containing a completed attachment J-5 should be provided with the hardcopy proposal to NSWC Dahlgren.


Admin Office ID and the Payment Office ID are the Uniform Identification Code (UIC) of the administration office (Defense Contract Management Agency) and the payment office (Defense Accounting Service) that will either administer or make payment.  Offerors shall insert the UIC of these activities in these two fields as appropriate.  The Offeror shall place an “X” in the field corresponding to the Zone for which they are offeroring a proposal.  The Small Business field has been expanded and directions for its completion are included in the Amendment.

Question:
Reference: L.5.4.1.1.  This Offeror also requests that the Government reconsider the 30 page limit for the technical capability narrative.  The government explicitly requires that all 147 contracts listed in Table A be discussed in the narrative “in detail.” It is simply not possible to describe a contract in detail in 1/5 of a page.  Further, the Government seems to acknowledge that the space provided in Table A, page 2 for personnel experience is insufficient to demonstrate expertise and invites offerors to use the 30 pages to further address these qualifications.  Offerors bidding all 7 Zones, therefore must address 254 Table A entries in these 30 pages- providing just a tenth of a page to address each item.  Still further, the Government has now stated in the Amendment 3 Q&A that “all office locations of all Team members should be identified in the 30 page narrative.”  With potentially hundreds of office locations across a team, this listing in and of itself may require 5 or more pages.  

Answer:
Due to the volume of proposals anticipated, the 30 page limitation will not be increased.  There will be a change identified in Amendment 0004 clarifying the requirement for Offeror locations of Team members.

Question:
On Table A, page 1, What dollar value is required, the total contract value or just the contract value of the work performed related to the SOW’s 21 Functional Areas? 

Answer:
The dollar value should be the dollar value of the work related to the Functional Areas specified.

Question: 
Reference: Attachment J5 - In Column "AL" "Size of Small Business", does the government wish the Offeror to indicate their Small Business Size as average annual revenue?

Answer:
Yes.

Question:
(As represented in Table A, Page 2) How does the government propose to

evaluate our key personnel's "Brief Description of Experience Relevant to

Functional Area Within Past 3 years" against "Minimum Company Qualifications to Hold Position", given the 1 page limitation for Table A, Page 2, which limits the text to only one line if the printed document is to remain

legible?

Answer:
Table A as well as your discussion in the Thirty page narrative will provide the 



Government adequate information to determine your Depth and Breadth of 


experience as it relates to the 21 SOW Functional Areas.

Question:
Page 64 of the Q&As, answer (c) states Exhibit B should identify offices and their locations, and all Team members.  The copy of Exhibit B did not provide a column for locations.  How many office locations are to be listed?  All?  One?  One per Zone?

 
Answer:          See Amendment 0004.

Question:
RFP Page 123 requires identification of offices and their addresses on the cover letter for each location the Offeror intends to perform the proposed effort.  How many office locations are to be listed?  All?  One?  One per zone?  Prime only?  Prime and Subcontractor?  If it is required to list more than one per zone, the cover letter could be longer than the one page required.

Answer:
The Cover Letter page limitation was increased to five pages per Amendment 0001 dated 16 December.  Amendment 0004 requires that Prime/Team members location (one per zone proposed) be listed in Exhibit B not the cover letter or the 30 page narrative.

Question:
Reference: Amendment 3, Attachment 2, page 37, second question/answer.  Offerors are permitted to provide “various volumes of work and the cost savings identified per volume of work.” In Attachment J.5, should offerors provide the lowest volume/cost savings proposed or the highest volume/cost savings proposed or some average?

Answer:
Offerors should provide cost savings based upon your corporate decision on how you wish to structure your offeror.

Question:
Amendment 3, page 27 answer to second question indicates that the technical and cost proposals are delivered on the CD ROM which is being delivered to Panama City.  RFP Section 2.3 does not include requirement for the Cost Proposal to be delivered to Panama City.  Please clarify.  

Answer:
In addition to the hardcopies required, one CD-ROM containing both the Cost and Technical Proposal as well as one CD-ROM containing the Subcontracting Plan required by FAR 19.

Question:
Amendment 0003, Page 22 states “office locations of all Team members should be identified in the 30 page narrative”.  Does the government understand that many in industry have built very large, nationwide teams, and that to list all their team members, and their office locations (many with qualifying offices in numerous or all zones) as well as adequately addressing twenty-one SOW elements from Table A for multiple zones is quite challenging, and that this requirement only further limits our ability to adequately address each SOW element.  Will the government reconsider, and allow Team member office locations to be included with Exhibit B list of Team Members.  

Answer:
Amendment 0004 requires team member location (one per Zone proposed) are required to be identified in Exhibit B.  This information will be required to satisfy the presence criteria if you are using office location to satisfy the criteria.

Question:
We are requesting confirmation that the below list is a complete list of what Offerors must submit:
To Dahlgren:

-Cover letter

-one hardcopy of the Offer (the entire RFP with B, H, K completed), 

including hardcopy Attachment J5



-one hardcopy of Vol. I Technical Proposal including hardcopy Table A



-one hardcopy of Vol II Cost Proposal



-CD-rom with RFP Attachment J5



-CD-rom with Table A
To Panama City:



-10 hardcopies of Vol I Technical Proposal including hardcopy Table A



-1 CD-rom containing Vol I Technical Proposal including electronic Table A

If this list is not accurate, please provide the correct submission requirements.  Note that it is our understanding that no cost information (either hardcopy of on CD-rom) is to be submitted to Panama City (based on Section L) even though the answer to Question 120 on page 27 of amendment 3 says the CD-rom to Panama City "should contain the electronic copy of the Offerors technical and cost proposals.".  We feel the answer to this question will ensure that the government will get exactly what it desires and allow the evaluation process to immediately more forward toward the targeted April 2004 awards.

Answer:
See Amendment 0004.

Question: 
In the answers provided with Amendment 3, it is implied that PDF files are permitted for the electronic submission.  As the Government has indicated that the RFP controls, please provide a corrected RFP page 122 be provided indicating in Section L 4.2 that a PDF file is permitted.

Answer:
PDF files are permitted for the electronic submission.

Question:
Amendment 3 stated the Government’s intent to extend the due date of the proposals to January 22, 2004.  However, the RFP replacement page 120 included with the amendment still has the January 20 date.  Please provide a corrected RFP page.

Answer:
It will be corrected in Amendment 0004.

Question:
In the answers provided with Amendment 3, it is implied that a copy of the cost proposal is to be included on the CD-ROM.  However, the RFP replacement page 120 with Sections L 2.1 and 2.3 includes no requirement to submit the cost proposal on a CD-ROM.  As the Government has indicated that the RFP controls, please provide a corrected RFP page if it is the Government’s intent that the cost volume be submitted electronically.  If the Government modifies the RFP to require the cost volume to be submitted on CD-ROM, we request that RFP Section L 4.2 be modified to allow electronic submission of the ceiling unit price in Excel versus Word.

Answer:
Amendment 0004 provides guidance on the submittal of the cost proposal.

Question:
Section L 2.6 at RFP page continues to indicate that attachment J.5 be delivered on CD-ROM to the location identified in L 2.1, i.e., Dahlgren.  The text of L 2.1 does not indicate that a CD-ROM is to be submitted to Dahlgren.  Please resolve this inconsistency.

Answer:
Any inconsistency in this area has been resolved in Amendment 0004.

Question:
Exhibit B, Amendment 003 attachment 2 (Industry Questions and Answers) Page 22. Office Locations of all Team members should be identified in the 30 page narrative. Further, another Q&A indicates this data should be in the 5 page introduction, and further, under another Q&A this data should be in Exhibit B.  Do you really want this data repeated in all 3 sections? What data do you really Require? For some companies, with over 500 offices across all zones, do you really want all 500 offices listed? OR do you want the office (s) per Zone, that are in place and supporting the Warfare Centers and reference table B as the one source for this data?

Answer:
Amendment 0004 changes, requires office location per Zone of the Prime or one of the Primes Team members to satisfy the presence criteria.

Question:
Amendment 3 includes a revision to Attachment J5. Pages 2 and 3 of the Amendment include instructions for the additional columns in the J5 Table. In the category "Size of Small Business", the criteria used to describe the various sizes of Small Businesses are based on number of employees, rather than on revenue standards. Does this mean that the Solicitation will classify businesses as Small on the basis of the number of their employees, rather than on revenue standards? If so, is the Small Business Standard 500 employees?

Answer:
The Small Business size standard for this acquisition is NAICS Code 541330, Small Business size standard $23 million in average annual sales over the past three years.

Question:
I realize that the solicitation indicates that no questions submitted after 8 January 2004 will be answered however I would like to address and I wanted to confirm what is considered an entire copy of the solicitation. Does it include all sections J.1 through J.6 and Exhibit B (including J.4 135 pages of questions and answers)? Do we replace the pages from the original solicitation with the Amended pages and do not include the original solicitation pages replaced? Do we have to provide a full copy of the amendments (including questions and answers) as well or just the signed SF30 acknowledging receipt? 

Answer:
An entire copy includes all Attachments and Exhibits (except the 135 pages of questions and answers).  You should substitute the changed pages from the various Amendments into the original solicitation.  There is no need to submit any of the questions and answers in the “entire” solicitation.

Question:
Given the extensiveness of information required to bid in all 7 Zones, while still having to meet the same page limits as an Offeror bidding in only 1 Zone, it is nearly certain that Offerors bidding in multiple Zones will be at an overwhelming competitive disadvantage. An Offeror bidding all 7 Zones will have a distinctly more difficult time establishing “Outstanding” technical capability in the Midwest Zone, for example, than another Offeror bidding only the Midwest Zone.  This appears to contradict the intent of the Government of having a level playing field a competition for awards that are being made on a Zone by Zone basis.  This Offeror joins the many others who have requested that the 30 page limit be expanded significantly or that page limits be established in accordance with the number of Zones being bid. 

Answer:
Due to the anticipated volume of proposals, page limitation were developed.  The Table A information as well as the Thirty page narrative will be adequate information for the evaluation to determine your Depth and Breadth of experience/expertise.

Question:
Amendment 0003, pg 24, “Answer: A single CD-ROM which contains the information required by Paragraph L.2.3 shall be submitted. “
Amendment 0003 pg 26, “Question: Page 124 Additional Instructions to Offerors, Section 5.3 of the solicitation states that the PROPOSAL CONTENT includes, “Standard Form 33 with blocks 12 through 18 completed.  The Offeror is to submit one copy of the entire solicitation”.  The text then refers to specific “fill-in” requirements in sub-sections 5.3.1 through 5.3.3.  Question: Please confirm that this submission (both hard copy and digital) should be included in Volume II – Cost/Price Proposal.”

                         “Answer:  That is correct.”

Amendment 0003, pg 27, Question: “INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSIONS OF OFFERS Solicitation section 2.3 states that, “ONE ELECTRONIC PROPOSAL on ONE COMPACT DISK (CD-ROM)” must be provided as part of the submission to Naval Surface Warfare Center Panama City.  Question - Please define the specific proposal submission information that must be included on this CD-ROM.  For example, does this submission require inclusion of one entire copy (signed by the Offeror) of the RFP as required in section 4.3, page 123?”

                         “ Answer:   No, this should be submitted in hardcopy only (with a hard copy of the cost proposal).  The  CD-ROM should contain the electronic copy of the Offerors technical and cost proposals.

Amendment 0003, pg 27, “Question:  Does it (the CD-ROM) also include the completed Attachment J.5 as required in section 2.6, page 121?”

                        “Answer:   The CD-ROM should contain the Attachment J.5.”

Amendment 0003, pg 38, “Answer: Please see page 120, 2.0.  One entire copy of the RFP (signed by the Offeror), one paper technical proposal, and one paper cost proposal submitted to the Contracting Officer at NSWC Dahlgren.  A total of Ten (10) paper Technical Proposals and one copy of the Technical Proposal submitted on one Compact Disk (CD-ROM) to be submitted to NSWC Panama City.”

 

Our understanding is : 

-IAW RFP pg 120, Section  L 2.1 (Amend 0001) we send one (1) copy of the RFP (signed), one (1) paper technical proposal and one (1) paper cost proposal to NSWC Dahlgen.

-IAW RFP pg 120, Section L 2.3 (Amend 0001) we send ten (10) paper technical proposals and one (1) copy of the technical proposal on CD-ROM to NSWC Panama City.

-IAW RFP pg 121, Section L 2.6 (Amend 0001) we complete and submit Attachment J.5 (Amend 0003) on a CD-ROM to NSWC Dahlgren. 

Answer: 
See Amendment 0004.


 

Question:  
Reference Section L.4.2, page 122 – The fourth bullet states that tables and flow charts are not considered graphics if they appear in the management approach, cost savings approach, or technical capability section.  Technical Capability Section has been added since the draft RFP.  The answers to Question No. 2 on page 135 and Question No. 2 on page 67 of the Qs and As says that no tables or flowcharts may be used in the 30-page write up.  Question #4 on Page 122 says that “you may in the narrative demonstrate your experience/expertise in any manner you choose within the page limitation”.  Are Tables and Flow Charts permitted in our response to Evaluation Factor 1: Technical Capability Depth and Breadth, the 30 page write up?

Answer:  
They are permitted.

Question:  
Section L.4.2, page 122 – Is an organizational structure chart considered a flow chart?
Answer:  
No.

Question:  
Section L.4.2, page 122 – Font size is specified for text.  What is the font size for flow charts and tables.

Answer:  
None is specified.

Question:  
Section L.4.3 and L.5.2, page 122, 123-124 – How many copies of the cover letter should be submitted?  Should the cover letter be submitted with a specific volume?

Answer:  
Only one hardcopy of the cover letter is necessary.  Please include in your submittal to NSWCDD, Dahlgren, VA.

Question:  
On page 101 (ref. Certification 52.209-5), I do not find a paragraph “a” under the paragraph (2).  The paragraph is referenced in paragraphs d and e with fairly stern language.  Have I missed something?

Answer:  
Paragraph a begins on the previous page and continues onto page 101.  The paragraph (2) that you reference is a subpart of paragraph a of the referenced clause.

Question:  
Please clarify the requirements for the ceiling unit prices under CLIN’s 0001, 0004, and 0007 (pages 2 and 3) and the COST PLUS FIXED FEE ALLOCATION Table on page 4.

Our ceiling unit price will be based on a subcontractor’s labor rate.  We will contract for and be reimbursed for that rate plus the Pass-through Charge.  The subcontractor’s fully loaded rate will include profit/fee.  Should the COST PLUS FIXED FEE ALLOCATION Table on page 4 reflect the Pass-through Charge under the Fixed Fee column?  Is the Fixed Fee column reserved for Fee as defined in FAR 52.216-18?

Is it acceptable to show as Fixed Fee that dollar amount that would be part of the subcontractor’s total price?  Can we show subcontractor cost plus the pass-through charge under the cost column with subcontractor fee under the Fixed Fee column?  For example, given subcontractor labor cost of $100/hour, pass-through rate of 7%, and Fee of 10%, we would show:  Cost = $107.70 (this is base of $100.00 plus 7 % of $110.00 (Cost + Fee); Fee = $10.00; Total (Ceiling Unit Price) +117.70.  Or would it be shown at Cost = $110.00 (Subcontractor Price); Fee = $7.70 (pass through charge); Total (Ceiling Unit Price) = $117.70? We recognize that the actual values for the Section B table on page 4 would be the extended costs/prices based on the respective LOE’s.

Answer:   
The cost plus fixed fee allocation table has been deleted from the solicitation.  The Ceiling Unit Price should be reflective of, in this specific example, the subcontractor’s fully loaded rate (thru fee) and the prime’s loadings to the rate (pass thru loadings including prime’s fee).  

Question:  
Section 2.0, page 120, paragraph 2.1, Instructions for Submission of Offers, Is the delivery of the 11 paper copies of the technical proposal, one paper cost proposal, and one CD-ROM to Panama City treated as a proposal submittal in accordance with the late bid provisions?  Example, If an offeror submits to Dahlgren its required proposal documentation on time, i.e. 1400EST on 20 January (or whatever the extension date), but is 2 hours late with its delivery to Panama City, what is the Contracting Officer’s position?

Answer:  
Both submittals must meet the closing date and time provisions of the solicitation.

Question:  
RFP page 124, Section 5.2 number 10 states that the cover letter shall include: “A copy of the prime contractors CCR registration information from the CCR website”.  This information is approximately 3 pages long.  Can we assume that it is sufficient to just reference the site?  If all information does need to be included does this count toward the 5 pages or is it over and above?

Answer:  
It is not sufficient to reference the site.  The CCR submittal will not count against the 5-page limitation.

Question:  
Based on our experience working with Microsoft Office products, we have found that the ability to open or correctly print digital data can be adversely impacted by compatibility problems between different versions of Microsoft Office, Different operating systems, or different printer drivers.  Given this, is it acceptable to additionally include a .pdf file of the digital proposal data with the proposal submission as an alternative in the event that the Government’s printout of the digital data conflicts with our hard copy submission?

Answer:  
Data should be provided in the format specified in the solicitation, i.e. Microsoft Word Software.

Question:  
Based on previous question concerns, please confirm that the page count submission requirements will be based on the hard copy submission.

Answer:  
The page limitations are based on the hard copy submission.

Question:  
The 21 functional areas outlined in Section 3.0 are well defined. However, Section M, 4.0, Factor Rating Scale, Technical Capability requires large businesses to have relevant experience in 18-21 functional areas to receive an outstanding rating.  Since all zones do not perform all 21 functional areas, will the Government provide revised Table A’s by zone for the specific subset of the 21 functional areas which supports in a particular zone?
Answer:  
No.

Question:  
Can a contractor use contract past performance data from a zone where the functional area is performed to support another zone’s functional area?  For example, may we cite work performed in Zone 2 on FA3.13 to support Zone 5 FA3.13?

Answer: 
 Yes.

Question:  
Since the contract Awards will be done by zone, are there provisions for the Government to award subcontractors by zone?  For example, if we bid all seven zones with a team of subcontractors with zone-specific experience, and we win a contract in zone 5, does our subcontractor with zone 1 experience only also win zone 5?

Answer:  
Contract Awards will not segregate subcontractor’s by Zone.

Question:  
Attachment J5, is this required for the prime only or from every member of the offeror’s team?

Answer:  
This is required for only the Prime.

Question:  
Page 122, Table A-1, is Table A to be provided in both the hard copy of the proposal as well as the electronic copy or just in the electronic copy.

Answer:   
Table A is to be included in both the hard copy and the electronic copy.

Question:  
Section M, Factor 4 cost/price, if the offeror proposes a pass through rate based on the instructions to receive a “Good” rating, and the fee based on the instructions to receive a “Satisfactory” rating, and the escalation rate based on the instructions to receive an “Outstanding” rating, what would the overall rating be for them in the Cost/Price factor?

Answer:  
Hypothetical evaluation results will not be provided.  The Government will evaluate the factors and determine the offerors who provide the overall best value to the Government. 

Question:
Page 120, paragraph 2.3. Regarding delivery of proposals to NSWC Panama City:

Can delivery to NSWC Panama City be made by FedEx or UPS? If so, please provide detailed delivery instructions. Is a signature on a FedEx or UPS receipt considered valid proof of on-time proposal delivery?

In addition to, or in lieu of, delivery to NSWC Panama City, request that the Government add a delivery location on the west coast such as NSWC Port Hueneme or Corona.  Having the delivery date scheduled on the day following a weekend and a Federal holiday greatly complicates delivery via mail, FedEx or UPS and the heightened security alert on flights from west coast airports, especially Los Angeles, will make it difficult to transport proposal packages on commercial aircraft.

Answer:
Delivery to Panama City by FedEX or UPS is acceptable.  The address provided in Section L, Paragraph 2.3 contains adequate information for delivery.  The provisions of FAR 15.208 govern the timely submission of offers.  Further information is provided in Section L, 52.215-1 – Instructions to Offerors- Competitive Acquisitions (May 2001).

In order to be considered for award, offers must be delivered to the locations at the date and time specified in the solicitation as changed in Amendment 0003.

Question:
Pages 123, 124 – should the materials not included in Volumes I and II be submitted in a bound format similar to an Offer Booklet used in other NSWC activities?

Answer:
The SF33 and entire solicitation submission as required by Paragraph 5.3 on page 124 should not be bound.  The cover letter may be bound or not.

Question:
Page 124, item 10 from paragraph 5.2 – is the requirement to attach a printed copy of the company’s information page from the CCR website to the cover letter?

Answer:
Yes, and the CCR information does not count against the five page limitation of the cover letter.

Question:
Page 124, paragraph 5.3 – this paragraph states that the offeror is to submit one copy of the entire solicitation. Paragraphs 5.3.1, 5.3.2 and 5.3.3 discuss Sections B, H and K specifically. Does the instruction in paragraph 5.3 mean that the fill-ins in Sections B, H and K should be completed and submitted as part of the entire solicitation or should they be completed and submitted separately from the submission of the entire solicitation? If the latter is the case, should Sections B, H and K be left blank in the submission of the entire solicitation?

Answer:
Sections B, H, and K should be completed and submitted as part of the solicitation submission required in paragraph 5.3.  

Question:
Page 128, paragraph 1.0 – this paragraph states that the Government intends to award five (5) prime contracts to Small Businesses in each zone. The answer to the fourth question on page 76 states that “the plan is to award no less than five contracts to small businesses.” Please clarify.

Answer:
The plan is to award no less than five contracts to small businesses per zone.

Question:
Attachment J.5 – is Attachment J.5 meant to be filled out for the each member of the team or only for the prime? There appear to be several fields that don’t make sense if applied to subcontractors.

Answer:
Attachment J.5 is to completed for the Prime only.  A revised J.5 has been provided with a sample fill in.

Question:

Page 1, SF 33, Block 12 states that the acceptance period for the offeror’s prices as 180 days [19 July 2004].  In Section L, paragraph 5.2, subparagraph 8., that the proposal validity is through 20 May, 2004.  Which validity period does the Government want the Offerors to use for their proposals?

Answer:

Amendment 0003 changed the days in Block 12 of the SF 33 to conform to the 20 May 2004 date specified in Section L paragraph 5.2.

Question:
Page 123, Paragraph 4.3 - The solicitation states that entire copy of the RFP is to be submitted with the proposal.  Does this include all Attachments or just the ones that require the Offeror to provide information, such as Table A?  Also, since the RFP was provided in PDF format, completing the fill-ins, headers and other required information requires a substantial amount of manual work and QA.  Would the Government consider an offeror to be compliant if it converted the RFP to a Word document and then completed the appropriate sections?  Or better still would the Government consider providing the RFP in a PDF format that would allow the fill-in of information within the document?

Answer:
The RFP will not be provided in a format that allows fill-in of information within the document.  Instructions of paragraph 4.3 should be followed in the offeror’s submission.  There is no value in submitting Attachment J.4.  Conversion to a format other than PDF is acceptable except that any changes in the terms and conditions of the submitted solicitation could render an offer unacceptable and ineligible for award.

Question:
Page 124, Paragraph 541 -  Are the SPAWAR PEOs considered as part of the related NAVSEA Headquarter PEOs?

Answer:
No.  Work performed for a non related NAVSEA activity may be used if applicable as depth and breadth experience if it relates to the 21 Functional Areas of the SOW.

Question:
The evaluation process for the price proposal, beginning on page 132, states that to get an outstanding rating, the bidder must offer a pass-through rate of 1%; 3% or less to be rated good, and 6% or less to be rated satisfactory. The evaluation factors also require the bidder to use DCAA recommended rates in calculating the unit ceiling rate. For many contractors, the DCAA approved G&A rate is the normal accepted rate for pass-through applied to subcontractor, travel, material, and other direct costs. This seems to be a conflict, to require the bidder to use DCAA recommended rates for labor, yet require a lower rate for pass-through. Does the term pass-through apply only to subcontractor costs, or to subcontractor costs, travel, material, and other direct costs? 

Answer:
“Pass through rate” is defined as the cost added by the Prime for work performed by a member of the Prime contractor team (i.e., subcontractor).  It applies to all cost incurred by the Team Member/Subcontractor.

Question:
Page 126, paragraph 5.5.1.2.(b) – Ceiling Unit Price for Item 001, states that the price breakdown shall not exceed one page. If the prime uses a subcontractor’s labor category for the ceiling unit price, the offeror will be required to show that rate with his pass-through, escalation, fee, etc. added on, but the breakdown of the rate would be provided separately by the subcontractor in a sealed package. Technically, this comprises more than one page. Is this acceptable? 

Answer:
Yes, however the submission from the subcontractor should not exceed the established page limit.  The subcontractor submitted package must be clearly marked to identify the Prime offer that is being supported.



Question:
Page 129 – Evaluation: Are any of the four factors to be evaluated weighted more heavily than the others, or are all factors of equal importance?

Answer:
Factor 1 is significantly more important than Factors 2, 3, and 4.  Factors 2 and 3 are approximately equal and together are more important than Factor 4.  Although the technical capability, management, and past performance factors are more important than price, price is a substantial factor.  All subfactors are of equal weight within the factor.

Question:
Will subcontractors be required to observe the same limits as those proposed by the prime on pass-through, fee, and escalation?  If the subcontractor’s pass-through is limited as well, will it apply only to second-tier subcontracting or include travel, material and other direct costs too?

Answer:
Pass through rates for the Prime only will be evaluated and incorporated into the awarded contract.

Question:
Page 64, section G, subsection Ddl - G21 – Types of orders under indefinite delivery type contracts:  This section discusses the various types of orders that can be issued, including cost plus incentive and cost plus award.  For these types of orders, will the fee rate proposed by the offeror be the minimum or base rate, or will it be the maximum that can be awarded?  Additionally, will the fee % proposed by the contractor be converted to an hourly fee rate and if so, for which contract types?

Answer:
Converting to an hourly fee rate is not contemplated, however, this provision could be invoked on a Delivery Order.  The proposed fee will be the maximum rate.

Question:
Page 67, section G, subsection Dd1 – G40 (b) – Training:  This section states that the Government will not allow costs, nor reimburse costs associated with the contractor training employees in a effort to attain and/or maintain minimum personnel qualification requirements of the contract.  Since there are no minimum personnel qualification requirements, does this apply?  If training costs are still not allowable, does this mean as a direct charge or could training be charged as an indirect expense and be allowable?

Answer:
It will apply at the Delivery Order level where Key Personnel are required, as well as orders that may not have Key Personnel requirements.  It applies as a direct charge, and is not intended to change your accounting structure that may include indirect cost for general training of employees across your organization.

Question:
Pages 65-67 – SEA 5252.216-9122: This section would normally apply just to cost plus fixed fee term (fee per man-hour) contracts/task orders.  Is this the case under this solicitation?

Answer:
This clause applies to Level of Effort type orders.

Question:
J4. page 125.  States “RFP will be issued in a searchable .pdf format.  Can we expect the government to reissue the entire solicitation such that it can also be 

modified to complete Section B, H, & K? 

Answer:
No.  The solicitation is issued in its final format.

Question:
J4 page 67 Q2.  States “text boxes and tables should not be utilized in the technical capability section”.  Amendment 1 added text boxes and tables as acceptable for using flow charts and tables (4.2).  Please clarify. 

Answer:
The answer set forth in Amendment 0001 takes precedence.

Question:
J4, page 51 Q2.  Indicates that qualifications in a zone are by prime contract to an activity within the zone.  J4 page 34 and 128 indicates that qualification is by geographic zone, and not the activity issuing the prime contract.  Please clarify.

Answer:
See the revised Section H.1, page 70 incorporated into this Amendment 0004. 

Question:
J4 page 69 states Table A will be provided in an excel spreadsheet.  J4 page 96 and page 135 state Table A will be provided in a modifiable .pdf format.  Please clarify.  Also, now that Table A is by zone, column 6 appears redundant.  Recommend changing to program name, and/or total contract value. 

Answer:
J.4 is provided in an EXCEL format.  Column 6 is still applicable, as it identifies the Zone for which the table is being prepared.   

Question:
Table A.  Please clarify what value shall be used.   

Answer:
The dollar value should be the dollar value of the work related to the Functional Areas specified.

Question:
RFP page 125, 5.4.2.  States not to exceed 10 pages.  Page 123 states 20 pages total.  Please clarify. 

Answer:
Management Approach – 10 Pages

Subcontracting (Large Business Only) – 10 Pages.

Question:
If there is a discrepancy between J4 responses to questions, and/or between other RFP instructions, which document takes precedence? 

Answer:
The RFP and Amendments.

Question:
Reference Page 78, H.10, Guaranteed Savings Clause, Maximum Pass through Rate.  

In answer to several questions, the definition of the maximum pass through rate stated "the cost added by the Prime for work performed by a member of the Prime contractor team (i.e., subcontractor).  The cost could include fee, material handling, or general and administrative costs."  Please define the term "fee".  Is the fee referenced the pass through fee a prime may put onto subcontractor costs to cover any project management oversight?  

For example, a subcontractor cost is $100.  We have proposed a 3% pass through rate and a 5% fixed fee.  Does the subcontractor costs going forward equal $100 plus 3% plus 5% for a total price of $108 or is the Government expecting that the fixed fee is included in the pass through rate where the price from us as prime for the subcontractor is $103?

Answer:
Fee is defined as “Fixed Fee”.  It appears that the above scenario would result in a total price to the Government of $108.00 if the 5% fee and 3% pass through is applied.

Question:
Section H.12 - The last paragraph of H.12 refers to Section H.5 ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION, which appears to have been deleted in the final RFP.

Answer:
The last paragraph of Section H.12 was deleted in Amendment 0001.

Question:
M.4 - After downloading and printing the final RFP, we later noted that the “same” RFP was posted in an improved pdf format.  We assumed there were no material changes to the RFP, but we have just discovered a wording change on page 133.  Under the SATISFACTORY category, the wording changed from “A fee/profit percentage of greater than 8%” to “A fee/profit percentage of no greater than 8%.”  This is a significant change and should be noted with a formal RFP revision.  We also wonder if there are other “changes” that we have not yet noticed?

Answer:  
The official Solicitation, Amendments, Exhibits, and Attachments are located on the Naval Surface Warfare Center, Dahlgren Division (NSWCDD) Business Opportunities web site at: http://www.nswc.navy.mil/wwwDL/XD/SUPPLY/solicita/04r4000/solpoc.htm
Question:
Section L, page 114 - Item (2)(iii) instructs us to include a statement agreeing to furnish “items upon which prices are offered at the price set opposite each item.”  The statement does not appear to be appropriate for this proposal.  Please advise.

Answer:
It does not apply to the immediate solicitation, but may apply to orders under an awarded contract.

Question:
Section L, 5.5.3 - In the government’s answer to a question on this section, you responded that you will “reserve a minimum of five set-asides per Zone for 100% Small Business MAC Awards”. Given the 33% goal for Small Business Prime contract awards, a quick math exercise (i.e., five is 33% of fifteen) would indicate that would therefore be a minimum of ten (10) Large Business awards per Zone in your plans; however, neither the “five set-asides” goal nor the ten large business awards goal are written anywhere in the RFP. Does NAVSEA have a number of awards in mind for large business awards similar to the five Small business set-asides per Zone?

Answer:
Contracts will be awarded based on the criteria set forth in the  Solicitation as Amended.  There is no pre-established goal or number of contracts to be awarded except as noted for Small Businesses.

Question:
Page 132 (bottom) and Page 133 (top), Section M, under "Factor 4 Cost/Price", one of the requirements for an “Outstanding” rating states the following:

"The unit ceiling rate for Item 0001 is:

The actual hourly rate for the team's highest paid labor category,

DCAA recommended rates (if applicable),

Using less that 4% annual escalation and 

A fee/profit percentage below 6%."

Please clarify that the requirement for DCAA approved rates is not applicable to small businesses that don't have DCAA rate agreements, hence the inclusion of "(if applicable)" placed after that requirement.

Answer:
The statement is not to imply that a Rate Agreement must be in place.  It means a rate that DCAA has or would recommend.

Question:
Page 133 (top), Section M.  Would the definition of “DCAA recommended rates (if applicable)” include DCAA-approved provisional billing rates?

Answer:
Yes

Question:
Please clarify to which location(s) the CD for the Cost Volume should be submitted.

Answer:
A CD should be submitted to Panama City as specified in Section L, Paragraph 2.3.  There is no objection to the Cost Volume being included on the CD. 

Question:
Is the projected cost reduction for each year intended to be gross or net; that is before or after escalation is factored in?

Answer:
The cost savings/reductions should reflect what the offeror believes that he can achieve during the course of the contract. 

Question:
Do all subcontractors need to submit a sealed package?

Answer:
Packages are not required/expected from subcontractors.  The only exception may be those offers that include a subcontractor rate as the proposed ceiling rate for CLIN 0001, 0004, and 0007, and the subcontractor does not wish to share the back-up data with the Prime.  Page limit(s) for the subcontract submitted data applies.  The subcontractor submitted data should be clearly marked to identify the Prime offer being supported.

Question:
Please clarify that the Guaranteed Cost Savings proposed are not to be included in Line Items 0001, 0004 and 0007.  That is, the Ceiling Unit Price is the maximum price per hour that would be paid by the government before any Savings were reflected.

Answer:
That is correct.
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